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TN rm, SUPREME COURT OF THE UNITED STATES 

OCTOBER TERM 

- - - - - - - -
) 

ROBERT DEAN DICKEY, ) 
J 

Petitioner ) 
) 

vs ) No. 728 
J 

STATE OF FLORIDA, J 
J 

Respondent J 
) 

- - - - - - - - - - -
The above-entitled r.,atter came on for argument at 

12:55 o'clock p.m. on Wednesduy, January 21, 1970. 

J 

BEFORE: 

WAR.tlliN E. BURGER, Chief Justice 
HUGO r.. BLACK, Associate Justice 
WILLIAM O. DOUGLAS, Associate Justice 
JOHN M. 111\.RLAN, Associate Justice 
WILLIAM J. DRENNAN, JR., Associate Jur.tice 
POTTER S'r-I:.$7ART, Associate Ju:;;tice 
BYRON R. WHITE, Associate Justice 
THURGOOD MARSF.A!,L, Associate Justice 

APPEARANCES: 

' 

JOHN D. BUCHANAN, JR. , ESQ. 
Office of Public Defender 
201 South Monroe Street 
Tallahassee, Florida 32302 
On behalf of Petitioner 

GEORGE R. GEORGIEFF, 
Assistant Attorney General of Florida 
Tallahassee, Florida 
On behalf of the Respondent 
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MR. Cll1:EF J'US•r,:cE BURGER N,mber ~78, Dickey against! 

Florida ·rill be chc ne· t case heai:d. 

ORl\L ARGur, ENT !3' JOlm '). nUCHM'i\U, JR. , ESQ. 

0~' I>EIL~Tai? OF PET !T!ONEl< 

MR. CHIEF ,:iUS'J.'ICE BURGER: Mr. Buchanan, you may 

proceed wher.ever you are ready. 

MP.. BUCllhNI\N: Ma.1 it please the Court; The nature 

of this case is one ;:here ':,1e Petition wo.s convicted of a 

robbery charg~, ~entence<l to ten years ~-n the State 

Penitentiary; his triel 1vd been delayed for a period of eight 

years. 

The case w~s duiy appealed to the Florida District 

Court of Appeals, raising t:1e cons ':i tuticnal question of the 

Sixth Amendment. 

The issue in th;.s case for this Cou-:-t is whether the 

Petitioner was denied the right to a speedy trial, guaranteed 

by the Sixth Amendmcn.t to tae Constitution of the United States 

To put t-..his case in ?roper .,erspective, this is a continuation 

of the of what da11elopcd ir. Smi ... h v. Hooey. 

I would li!<e todj.scuss the fac-ts first, because thc:y 

are most important. 

On the 28t~ of June, 1960 a robbery occurred in 

Ga<isden County, Florida, On the first of Jul~•, 1960 a warrant 

for Petitioner's arr.st was sworn nut . At that time Peti\:ioner 
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was in custody of tne Federal authorities on related charqe~ 

bank robbery, 

Pet; tion \<as :'.n th jurisdiction of Florida fro, 

July until September, 1960. In September 1960 Petitioner was 

transferred into the custody of the Federal authorities and 

subs~ , sent tc Lea•,enwor-~ P nitentiary. During the 

period from July until September 1960 the State of F"lorida 

made no effort whatsoever to execute the warranc, o'l.:her tnan .. 
place it into the hands of the sheriff, 

Several years expired and Octoter 29, 1962 Petitioner 

filed a '1ritten dern,nd w.'. th the Circuit Court of Gadsden Comity 

requesting that he be brought back to Florida, or that the 

charges be dismissed against him. The Court, in an order, 

denied this request, sta~ing that there was no authority upon 

the State of Florids to .ceturn Petitioner to Florida to stand 

trial since he was detained in Federal custody and that he \las 

there because of his own doing. 

Petitioner subsequently filed two more written 

demands. He filed one in A9ril 1963 and another in March of 

1968. After that the Pe;itioner filed original mandamus 

I 
I 
I 

proceedings in the Florida Supreme Court and the Florida Suprcml, 

Court, in a decision held that eithe~ Florida had to return 

Petitioner to stand trial or else drop the detainer charges 

against him. 

Petitioner then filed a motton to dismiss in 
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September l, 1967 re.:iuesting thattne charges be dropped against 

him. There was no action on this ,Tlotion. The State, in ;:in ex 

parte order on Oecemoer .LS, 19f7, cbtained an order fr0!'.1 .:he 

trial court having jurisJici:ion, w ich ordered the Petiti.oner 

back to F'lorida to sti,.nd trial 011 January 23, 19€8. Petitionei: 

was brought back into cuatody on that date and on that date an 

arrai~nment was held and he was ordered to trial on that 

Friday, but over objection of counsel, trial was continued 

until ;January 31, 1968. 

On January 30, 1.968 the Petitioner filed two 

motions. The first motion ~as a motion for continuance, based 

upon the factsthat te was unable to locate two defense wit-

nesses: one by the name of Dolan, who woul1 have cooperated 

certain testimony that he had been in th~ place that had been 

robbed and another ty the name of Strickland, who would have 

testified that on tre niqht tha·t the robbery occurred in 

Florida that the Petitioner was in Waycross, Georgia. 

The Court granced l:he motion for continuance and on 

the same day the Petitioner filed a motion to quash the infor-

mation, based upon the fact chat he had. been denied the rl.ght 

to speedy trial. Tt e Court \Ji thheld ruling on this motion. 

He also filed with ':he motion an affidavit stating that one of 

his witnesses had d .. ed in 1964. The court then continued the 

trial of the case u11til February 13, 1968. 

On Februa::y 12, 1968 the Petitioner then filed 
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another mot~on for continuance, ba-~d upon the fact that One 

Strickland, A. Bud Strickland, sti l could not be located. 

By that tim .:he wit1ess Dolan had been ... ocated; had been 

subpoenaed: for the tcial. 

The court, on Feb~uary 13, 196G, denied the motion to 

quash, based upon th• consti~utional qrounds, and ordered 

Petitione~ to trial. Durinq the course of the trial the deputy 

sheriff who testifie-.l for the State, testified that he 1ad 

destroyed the notes ;hat he had taken down in connection with 

the description give.1 to him by the victim ~,hen the robbery had 

occurred, which brin 1s us to the content5.on in this case. 

As we ace iealinq with a Sixth Amendment case: 

"As in all criminal ,,rosecutions the acc:.:..;1a.d c,t..;J.l cmjoy 1:he 

right to a speedy tr.al." As I rncntion'.'.!d previously, this 

picks up where Smith v. i ooey lef·;; off, decided by thi.s Court 

last term. 

How, the general reas6ning has been that where a 

person can snow that there is prejudice to the defense, this 

has been suffjcient \:0 establish that the defendant would not 

get a fair trir- • I : , in fact, he could show that witnesses 

were dead or missing, that witne~ses couldn't be gotten in time 

for the trial, 

Now, the S;ace's contention is in tilis case that: 

(1) they gave the Pe.itioner a speedy trial, and (2) there was 

no prejudice to the defense. 

5 
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It is our oosit5.on that there was a prejt1dice to the 

defense because of tne eight year delay, because a witness was 

unavailable to support tne Petitioner's contention, and (3) 

that a witness had died, and (4) that vital evidence had been 

destroyed (n.ot maliciously) by the State, but simply becaus"' as 

the deputy sheriff said .;hat he didn • t kr·ow Wh')n this man would 

come to trial. 

t-!ow, tuentf years --

Q The st~tute of limitations, I suppose, is --

A Pardon me, Justice. 

Q I suppose there is a statute of limitations for 

robbery in Florida; is there? 

does it 

time of 

A 

Q 

':)cgin 

what? 

Yes, sir, but the statute of limitations --

It's tolled when he's out of the state. Anc:, uhen 

to r,.m, at the time of the indictment o;: at c:he 

A The statute of limitations in Florida is tolled 

when the warrant is placed in the sheriff's hands, and that 

stops, whether he's ir-state or out-state. 

Q Is to .. d when he --

A Is tolled. 

Q "Tolcl, as I understc:.nd the word, meand i.t' s . 

extended; it stcips running. 

A Yes, sir. 

Q 1,nfd y.,mu ~ 1y :li~'lu tolled wl).e11 ~he warrant is place 

6 
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in the sheriff's hands? I don't understand that. 

A The cds that we have cited in the brief, which 

is Rosegarten vcrsu5 State. 

Q WeJ. L, ,!he~ does J. t begin to run in Florida, at 

the time of the indict,r,cnt? Ordin<-rily; forget this case 

Let's talk abm ... t an ordinary robbery case in Florida when the 

man presumably remai 1s i.n Florida. ',hat is the statute of 

limitations? HO\-. many years? 

A Two years. on a non-capital case. 

Q And w1en does it begin to run? 

A It begins to run as soon as the offense is 

committed. 

O Your ;tatute, as you describe it, the sheriff 

has got the power to toll· the statute, just by holding the 

warrant and delibera~ely not serving it. 

A Yes, .;i;.; the way I understand the rulin,rs in 

Florida. 

Q Even .f the defendant is in \:he jurisdiction? 

A Even 1f the defendant is in the jurisdiction, 

because the defendant then has the availability of Florida 

Statute 915.0l and .02, which gives him the right to demand 

trial and push the case along. 

Q Well, then, in the ordinary case, within two 

years after the offe,se was commit·:ed, the warrant has to be 

placed in the sheriff's hands? 

7 
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A Now, l the defendant i.s 0·<1t-of-state, and no 

warrant has been placed in the sheriff's hands, then tha'; would 

tole the statute of limitations, this absemce. 

Q 

A 

His absence from the scate; right. 

Yes, ti:-:-. 

Now, the 

Q You s,.y that Florida could have had him any time 

they wanted to? 

A Yes, ~ir; there was constitutional authority. 

Florida had on its beeoks, 94105, which uas a et tute permit.ting 

it to obtain a priscner from another state. 

Q A regtlar extraditiori process if he's a per:.on 

in cus i:ody? 

:Jo, s:i r. This would be a little di ffer:ent 

proceeding, 94105. tow, Florida had not -- this case went to 

the Florida Supreme Court. Florida had never ruled until the 

Dickey case went to the Florida Supreme Co~rt, of whether the 

State had a constitutione.l duty to bring an individual back 

from another'£tate wto was in some type of custody. In Dickey 

v. the Circuit Court of Gadsden County, which is cited in the 

brief, the Florida St,preme Court held that the State had the 

constitutional duty t.o bring an ir,dividual back to Florida.. .. 
Q Isn't it true that they bring them back to the 

nearest Fede;:al peni t.entiar.y? The Federal Government does; 

brings them as close to the county as possible and then lets th 
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county come pick him up? 

A Yes, ~ir; thar i~ c1rrect. 

Q And t1at could nave been done 

A That ::ould have been done here, ev~n without the 

decision in Dickey v. the First Circujt Court of Gadsden County, 

yes, sir. 

Now, discuJsinc the quest:i.on of prejudice in this 

case we have ,1ot dwelt on this in any length, because I thinl· 

the decisions are e,p larent ::o this Court. There is, on paqes 

17 and 18 of our bri 3f tl-.cre are a null1ber of decisions where 

there is shown prejulice tothe defense. 

Another ar,urnent may be made that, assl.lJ'ning that all 

witnesses were prese1t, would this still have been prejudicial 

in this case? We co1tend it would have. We contend that any 

time there is a leng;hy delay that the quilt determination pro-

cess is eroded, simp.ly by virtue of the fact that witnesses 

forget as tha years pass what they are supposed to remember in 

order to testify to. 

And, obvio·1sly, the right of cross-examination is 

lost to the defendan:. 'l'he trial itself, literally becomes a 

mockery, because the witnesses cannot recall events that hap-

pened many years ago 

Now, in th<! case of Klopfer versus North Carolina, 

which was decided by this Court, the commentators have said 

that there has been 110 prejudice discus::ied in this case, but we 

0 
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do note 1:hat as notej by th;.s Cour .. in Klopfer that the delay 

which an accused is 3ubjectetl to tllat hie movement, freedom 

of movement is curtailed, the suspicion that he conllllitted the 

crime, that the COll'Jr .. mit"r L; actually interested in an early 

trial; and that thes~ facto.:s are ui:ficient, among the ot:,ers 

to i:ho·.., t.hat there was prejudice i,, tlni.: case to Mr, Dickey. 

New, I would like to poi.1t out that the Hespcndent 

claims that the Petitioner Dickey did not comply with tre 

Florida statutes. Fl.orid,, has on its bocks, 91501 and 91502. 

In 91501 if a person :i.s f:!"eed and he can demand trial in three 

terms of court and if he complies with these statutory regula-

tions. and he is not ::>rought to triaj_ witrin three terms of 

court then he -- tee charge is dismissed completely and forever 

barred. 

New, 91502 says the same thing except for a person 

who is in custody. '\ow, the State cf Florida contends that the 

Petitioner never corn;::lied with these statutes, and we will 

agree with that; there is no argur.~ent. But I would like to 

point out t,:, this Co.i.rt that when the Petitioner filed his 

written demand with the cou~t having jurisdiction, the first 

time it was late. l,hen he filed his second demand that, he was 

right on time but the court then said "W~ have no autho1.iL-y to 

bring you back from another jurisdiction. n So he was r.either 

fish nor fowl. lie c.ould;.'t get the beu?fit of the Florida 

statute::-: which the other people who i,ere incar.cezai;ed ln pri:,on 

10 
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in that state Here e1titled t.o, anc. who could have had LJpeedy 

trial. So, I don't .:hinlc the argu. i::int that he failed to comply 

with the st tute i~ guff1cient. 

Q l'lhat ls that, a waiver argument? 

A Yes, ,ir; we're con<;ending that. there was no 

waiver here on the pirt of the Peti·~ioner because he filed his 

written de,1,and.s, eve 1 though he didn't track the Florid<' 

statutes. 

We are als) co:itending -·· the State is contending 

thathe got a speedy ;rial; we're saying ~hat an eight-year 

delay is not a speed{ trial . We're saying that the factors in 

this case .:ire the dcne1 and missing wH:.neEses; that the desti.:.c-

tion of the notes wa3 suffic.i.ent in itoelf to show a prejudice 

to the.defense. 

Q 

A 

Where was he during that eight years? 

He wa, in Federal prison, Your Honor: Leavenwort1 

and Alcatraz, I bel~?ve, 

Q 

A 

For w:1at? 

Bank robberies which he had pled guilty to in 

Florida but they wer? Federal charges. 

The State 1as also raised the contention that he 

shol.lld not have applied or gone u:io 1t rai.;inq th,, question of 

a right to speedy trial after conviction. The State is con-

tending in their bri;if that he should have gone the route by 

writ of prohibi nn. 

ll 



1 

3 

4 

5 

7 

8 

9 

10 

tt 

12 

1.3 

14 

ts 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

23 

24 

25 

The answer to this · s the t our off .:.ce was app.: in,-ed 

to repre nr the Pet, tier ~r or, Jan dry 23, 1968 at the time of 

the arraignment., and the t.cial r.nur. a .. that tJ.m- set the tr. 1 

\e•hich is a matter. of eight clays later and wa didn't ha,,e the 

opportunity in uhich to raise these n\lestions by w:ri.t r,f pro-

hibition. 

I 11ould like to '?Oint out to the Co11rt that already 

the trial court had ccte=ined that they weren't going to a'ls,,e_ 

-che question of whet]- er there was prejudice in the defense when 

he filed his first •,;, itten demand for a speedy trial. 

Whnn this ~ase went up to the Florid~ Supre~e Cour~, 

the Florida Supreme (ourt had before it the factual situation 

that this man had not been tried in scven-,..nd-a-half years, and I 
they r .. fused at that pt'i.rt to ati,n:er tie question of •~het·1e::-

there 11as going to bE. ,;,roju<lica to his defense, always deterring' 

back tha~ i,; hen yoll gc: t to trial t1'cn '1:he trial court ca."I · make 

this determinacion. 

' 

Q 

A 

Q 

~,hen 1,,as the first request?. 

For c.1 speedy tria:, Your Honor? 

Yes. 

A Octob~r 29, 1962. 

Q I/as he already in prison at Alcatraz? 

A Yes, sir; or Leavenworth; one or the ocher. 

So, it is cur. position that the writ of prohibition 

would have resulted jn the same thing, that this was too 

12 
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,I 

premature in order to dee.de the quest.ion of whether thin 

defendant was der,iPd U, r._g:1t to ,1 ::,peedy t:?:"ii:l . 

I would 1 · ke to point out in ,, few other matters, the 

State has alleged that one of the witnesses, !lary McAlpern w.::& 

not called as a witness c'.lt this trial. I do:1't think this was 

known to Counsel fo~ the Respondent, but that she had died in 

1960. 

Q That wi:.sn' t the sister to whom he allegedly made 

a telephone call? 

A No, sir; that was the one that counsel refers to 

as the woman who was with him the night that he was supposed to 

be in \·iaycross, Georgi.i . 

Q Would you say that eight years was er.ough tir:ie 

elapsed so that you wou"'.dn' t t,avc' 1~'.) shot, any prejudice at all; 

the prejudice would be prc3umed? 

A Your Honor, I think -- yes, sir; I think you can 

almost say that in every ~ase that there is some inherent 

prejudice in extre'llf'ly long delays, even assuming that every 

witness was there, even assuminq ttat the doc\.lll1entary evidence 

was there, I think it's just a comrr.on-known fact that delay 

il:self fades the wemory of people. 

I recall a book by M-c. Francis Worldman, "The l\rt of 

Cross-Examination," where a little maxim was demonstrated before 

the class, he reports, and the different conflicting reports in 

there was only a matter o· a 'cw minutes . 

lJ 
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For the rc~son< 

Q ,·/ho do you quote t t 

A 'lour lonor 

Q It do):,:n't mc1ke any dif-~-:?rerce to you; docs it? 

I mean, to your argu nent'? 

A It r•dlly cccsn't, because most of the ccn:m31-

tators have said tha-; the bcnefi t l . .i\lres to the defendant. -r.: 

think this is errci;,:c'>us. Once you get do:a, the line you have 

taken a gamble. It can inure to the detrin.ent of either the 

defendant or to the prosccuti.on. 

Q What J. f it were ti:u tha+- it bcne fi. tted the 

defendant? 

A Well, if it inured to him, obviously let's 

assume tt,a.t he would get off with "not guilty" type of situatio , 

but in th&t case, looking at. it in its b:toad perspective, I 

don ' t think the ends of justice arc concerned. We're not gei;-

ting a fair trial at that point; it suddenly becones a gamble: 

who can outlast who? Whether the prosecution can outlast the 

defend nt or the dere~dant can outlast the prosecution. 

So, you arc literally locing, the way I understand, 

the adversary sy~tem thP very vital thing; that this is an 

attempt to get at th truth, And wh.in you get into the situa-

tion there I don't think you can say either side benefits, 

Your Honor. 

And for those reaso:is we request that the District 

14 
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Court of APPeal~' d r.lsion be revut ;ed and that the Pet~tioner 

be disch~rgcd from l~l, conviction nd sentence. 

MR. CIIEF ,USTICE UU~G~R· rlr. Gecrgieff. 

ORAL ARGO ,UT SY C'EORGL F. GEORGIFFr', ASSISTANT 

ATTORNBY GCNERAL CF FLOR·DA, ON BEHALF 

OF PETiiIONER 

l~R. GEORGU:.F: :1r. Chief 1ustice and may it pleace 

the Co.1rt: 

MR. CHIEF LUSTICE BURGER: Since we have got the fact, 

picture before us, just wh:it reasons.were, if any, inpediments 

to Florida in getting this man out of the penitentiary and 

bringing him back fo1 trial. Did Florida try ~o do it and 

were frustrated? 

A No, tl ey did not. They made no attempt uhatco-

ever to secure hil. r,:_t:urn •mt:~l afto?l.' the decision in Dickey, 

rendered by ':h1= Flo:n.da Supreme Co1,~t. ~'.one whatsoever. At 

l 

that time Mr. Oickey peti cic,n'1d on .J. ,nandamue proceeding to say, 

"Look: 'llake it or mi!'s; eitt.er get me back down there and try 

me, or get this det,.iner off my bac'.; so that I can get parole 

from. the Federal autl.ori ti.:!s." No,-,, that's the posture in whic 

he put his pleadings and in light thereof, they issued their 

opinion which is a p,rt of the record here. 

On that occnsion, Mr. Ho?kins, th~ State Attorney, 

secured an order to t,ve Mr. Dickey returned fo~ purposes of 

trial. Ile was brouqht back and, as Mr. Buchanan explained, the 

15 
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results that followca did follow. 

Now, en the "ir&t occasion when an attempt was made 

'1-•ith the Federal authc,rities to get him back, they cor.1plied 

and we did get him ba :k, trled ana convicted him, and he sits 

in Raiford. 

Q Did \:h:.t sugges·.:., Mr. Georgie ff, that if the 

authorities had tried earlier that it wouid have been the ~=e 

results? 

A Yes, I rn back hom~ again, t guess. Yes, it does 

Now --

Q Can yo· 1 suggest any hypothesis as to why t;,is 

was not done? 

Only bi,::ause there w .. s no duty to do it, con-

stitutionally, either at the State or Federal level. Unti.1 
l Dickey, in Florida an<l Klopfer here, there was never any ::ornman -

ment that you do th:.s Now, there were times when you app~cved 

cases in which a cornp".aint was riade regarding a speedy trial 

at the rederal level; there were tirees when you disapproved the,, 

but you never did it nnder a con~titutional manddte. Florida 

never did it until Di,:"<ey. 

That's why : took the position of Judge Taylor, to 

whom 1ese complaints were brought, and I oall them complaints, 

because they weren' t , lcman<.!s for a speedy 'crial. I call them 

complaints and I say :hat he was no~ in error b~cause, dS 

ocaurred with Gidelon, many pecple bore the brunt of that, who, 
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perhaps oroperly didr +- deserve.. it Rut that's neith~~ ~ere 

nor th~r. ; i'.:'s donu . u~, it's .., l~ ttli..: u,1fair to s:-.y to ,;or~ 

body, "Y01l should hc.1.c done thia b "lt'JSe you were compel.c.d :,y 

law to do it," when <even you havep't. suid th-,.t that was t1'e 

case. 

Now, I am rure that Judge Taylor doesn't need rny 

pe~son,l ~rotcction, don't reisuna_r~tand, but if we're talki~q 

about tnc r..an having " righ·t, I say that it cane into 

first, when you 1·e11dered your de cis; on in Klopfer and 

being, 

then when 

10' Dickey acknowledged ti-at, ou:: of our Supr,:,m~ Cou·t, and saitl, 

11 
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13 

14 

15 

"In light of Klopfer it i.3 now" !"ituation where, when you do 

tiake a dc11and, we a:cc !;a'.1-ing 

0 What year <lid -we decide Klopfer, 

A '68. 

Q '68. 

A Yes. 

0 And is this, tn effect an argument that Klopfer 

Ehould not be retroactive? 

I 
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21 

Oh, ye •• Oh, yes. l ~m not goinq to mislead you! 

about that. I can't .1ide be:1ind it --

Q You do.1 't think theru was ,my such t.'ling as a 

22 due process righ~? 

23 /\ Wc.ll, I can't say thc1t, Mr. Justic-2 Harlan, be-

24 ca\llle how do I e~-plai1 thoHe situ~t~ons in which you did grant 

25 IJ rcl:i.e f 

I 
before Klopfer, you see. Now, let mes put it this way: 
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Suppose we have a gr ,,i<1 si c:uatioi, of a na~ who committed " crim 

some 20-odd year& ag<>, anc.. through some dodgP. of one kind or 

another, and he lived 1 <:imon Pure life in be·.:.~een and it was 

bro ugh·.: to you on very painful circurrstances • l remember, rr,y-

self, from losse:? th,1t I suffered here myself, that as ofl::"'n as 

not, these things h':lve <1n effect on the decision-m~king pro-

cess. 

After all, when it is a g.coss situation the State is 

fair g,.1n<), and perhaps they should be, since 'i:hey do ha= the 

power, but when you ,Jo have si tnat1on:. like thnt you haven• t 

backed a,zay from ,. t. I simply sub d. t that Klopfer was not re-

troactive and ough<: not to b?:, be:::, U!,e J.f , e don• t go to that 

cituat.ion then the situation becomes one in which everybody wil~ 

say, "Well, loo:c, you got me in jai 1 as a four-tiine loser and 

the last three times it wa'3 four-and-a-half years before they 

tried me. I have a rtght to be out and you've got to re~ove .:he 

stigma of a four-tine lo:-er and the life sentence, by the way, 

which is 

Q Well, there wouldn't be this case because he 

asked --

l\ Counsf 1 s~ys he i::sk£d and it, may be that you wi.11 

decide thathe did. , c.or.tend that he did not. 

Q Well, didn't the judge say that. "I will not 

do this because you vave .:ibsentcd yourself from the state vol.i.n-

tarily? 
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A That ia~ a part of the order, Mr. Justice 

Marshall, but that's not the predicate for his concluvion. 

Q 

i"C;JUested ;_ t? 

A 

cs it in the record, the statem~nt where he 

I beq you pa:.:clon, sir? 

Q Does :he record contain a written request from 

him or the trial al my tirr.e? 

A It co 1tains three 11ritings, Mr •. ,Justice Black, 

and I don't call then de ,ands beca1se I d>;>n't think they a::-e 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Are they requcsi:s? 

No. He puts it in i:he alternative. 

What is Iii,; alternat.iv~? 

Bring in.a back or t"'ce aw,.y the detainer. In one 

uf there he says, "Tl:} me or re lec:.se me. " 

Q !~ere :.s that? 

A On pc~t 9 of the appendix, Mr. Justice; the next 

to the last pari.graph, reading: u 

Q Is that tho only one? 

A That's the one that'Nould be pertinent to your 

inquiry, I think. I'll r~ad you th othexs if yov like, but 

"Your Petitioner now move-sand prays this Honorable 

Court to cause Pet-.iti)ae:i: to be brought to appear before it by 

means oi a proper pro=es~ of the law, namely: a wr.~t arising out 

of this Court orderinJ the Petitioner before it foe a trial by 

jury or that an o::der be issued di,;miosing said charge." 
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Q 

A 

What date was th'lt? 

That wai; c,;i the 29tt of Oci:.ober, '62. That: was 

his first one, thirtv l"ontho after h · went to jai , .• 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Thal: 11as a pretty c.ear request for a trial. 

Beg your pardon, sir? 

'iasn'. that ::i ptetty clear reqi,est for 2 trial? 

Oh, yes; it :o.s. 
I thought you said that you <iidn' t t.'1.ink he had 

made the request. 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

I sa:.f. thc're was onf of the three. 

How about the one in '55? 

'55? rhis o~an't occur until 1960, sir. 

Oh, tl1~t•s ri~ht; October of '6?.. 

That's th• on~ I just read, sir. 

1-lell, did you read that he asked that the 

above-nareed Respondent to penuit an immediate trial in order col 

enable· your Petitioner to properly protest his right as guaran-

teed under the Constitution of the United States? 

A 

Q 

Yes, but it wasn't quaranteed until Klopfer. 
J Well, was ther~ any doubt when you read thi::: tha1; 

he's asking for a spJedy trial? 

A WeJ.l, sir, I've got to ba allowad to go back to 

915~0~, and if 1 am, there was considerable doubt. 

Q 

A 

Rcallr? 

After all, let'c say wa have a paid defendant 
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and he's hired coun l who's very xpensive and ;ery good and 

very e fic:i.ent. No :ourt would suffer the 1na?l to complain 

about demand for a speedy trial unless he met the rcquirementn 

of 915 02. I suhmi.t that D'ckey i not a super-claflS 

just b cause :1a didn t have a lawyer. 

Q 

A 

Q 

l7here was he in '62, 

He wa, ·n Lea~~n orth, or Alcatraz; I'm not suxe 

Well, wasn't one of them filed while h,:1 was 

still in Florida? I l .:he Frceral 1,:>enitontiary? 

A 

Q 

No, s .r. 

Would you say that is the on:..y expJ.icit demand 

for~ jury trial or ·ale se h mad? 

A I thinlt so. 

Q W£>11, what s this at page 17? •rhis, apparently 

is another petition 1e swore to on the fi.rot day of April, 1963 

and that has much thi saJ11e langudge; does~•t it? "To be 

brought to appear ba :ore it br 111eans of the ,?roper proces" of 

law, nareeJ.y: a writ irising ou of this court o :dering 

Petitioner before it for trial by jury, or that an order be 

issued disnissing su:h charge." 
... 

A He co >ied that paragraph. 

Q well, whether h copied it or not, th:? second 

time he explicitly d~anded either trial or release, wasn't it? 

A •rhat • 1 correct. That one .,,as- riqht on the-

button, on the fi,..st da:, of ~he term. TJ-,c second one was 2£ 
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days l~c-,i. The thit:c. enc spannc.d '16 mon':hs before he made it 

after ba.,ing mao.e the sec.,nc. one. Now, I ask you, he t.:..lks about 

prejud c_. I dcn't n.?&l toque -~.e,1 yoi., of course, but I ask 

the que-stion: where is t1'? prc-judice if hn wai':s 30 months 

before he makes his fir,\: demand, if i:he pas!':agc of time is 

what we cl.re .iskcd ,;.() helicwe !.s the preaicate. 

Q vie~. 1 , :..f he got t t th<2n e rniqht not be com-

plaining new. 

A That is . fact anc. }1<? haci clo:-i it the thi;:-i 

time running he cerca:..nly wouldn •t have h.1d .mv trouble comi.-ig 

here, or if he had .c1:>5.sed it by i:,rohibition he wot.ldn't be 

sitting in Raiford wcdny. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Maybe he did11 • c kr.u about it. 

Didn't know ~bout what, sir.? 

The lau. 

He had counsel at that time. 

Maybe his counsel didn't know about it. 

Q In referring to the ti~e fuctor, counsel, I 

thought I remembered o,,,, .1ngl:!.!ih ca_ which wa3 cited in the 

court of Appce.ls in ocent ye,,rs, in which tl1ey held thilt two 

::rears uas an inherently o·o·,ressive ~im_ beyond which there 

could be no delay wi hcu per se pl:?ju11c<?, H/Jre you'vu got 

eight years. 

A 

Q 

Well, [ understand --

Doest.he E:tate o:.' l"'orida have any hypothesis as 
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to why they should n()t h ve brought him back ilrtd cried hir 

p;i:ompt.1~•? 

A Well, s.r, I don't put it on the bn!lis that theyi 

had no way in which .:hey could. Obviously, if they didn't we 

wouldn't e•,en be he".'c. 

Q I know bu+-, apart from the 14th Amendment, due 

process clauc:e, anti the speedy trial pr.:ivisions, isn't- it ju:3 t 

simply basic, sound ~dmiristration in prosecution to try these 

cases promptly and g~t them out. o<: the way? 

very puzzled by the d~lay ~f ti-at length. 

I am, frankly, 

A 

Q 

A 

Well, it depends on whether we call it a del"'Y• 

Well, eight years looks like delay. 

Well, it's an interval with w,1ic'.'l X'd ;;ather net 

be saddled, but I am. Now, I didn't make :i.t, just as Mr. 

Duciumnn inhe;;ited t1e situation as it ca"lle, buc --

Q I wa::n' c undertaking to tax you with it, but I 

asked you to offer a hypothesi:i. 

A Perha,os I can pu\: it this way and make it a 

little more palatable; r eon't know. 

By all means go ahead, Mr. Justice. 

Q When ias the charge filed agains·i:. this gentle-

man? 

A Well, now, that'g a good question December 15 

of 1967 is when tho infonnation wai; filed by the State J\ttornoy 

That means that he W3S tried within 55 days of that charge, 
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Nc:1 comes tt. ~;iestion o what are \ e talking about? 

Are we talking about J ly l 1960 vi: are~~ tclking abo1t 

December i5, )967? r cannot resolve that for you. All I can 

do is tell you that if Dickr.y had been brought back in 1963 

what he have been brought back to? I'll tell you what, to a 

warrant that had never even been served on him by the u. s . 

Marshal. 

Now, Mr. J lstice W.:e,,art inquired, I think, of ~Ii:. 

Buchanan as to the statute of limitations. Well, all the 

replies are accur.ate, except that when it's served is when the 

thing goes into effect for purposes of tolling the stato.1te. 

Now, they gave it to the u. s. Marshal. He declined to take it 

at Marianna where they were l:eeping hir: as a Federal prisoner 

on the Ea.lone Bank robbery. He said, "Wait until we get him 

assignee to a Federa~ institution after his plea then you send 

it in; then we'll serve it on hirn." 

Lo and behold, that's what they did but nobody ever 
I 

serveo it on him. They-simply put it in his file as a detainer• 

and that made the predicate for th conplaint that he wanted to 

get out from under the detainer and subject himself to parole 

if the Federal authoritj_es were go.'.ng to give it to him. 

Q That•~ what I was thinking about: when he was 

at Marianna the State could have taken him then --

A No, they could not, sir. 

Q -- with the perm.ission of the Federal 

24 

authoritie1. 
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A No, sir. 

Q ~rny "Jt. 

A Well, b ... c ur_ nc• \,a_, bei.ng held for trial by the 

Federal authorities >n the !i11lone t.ank robbery. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Yes, »ut where was he tried? 

On th.,t charge? 

Yes, Jir. 

I would acsu11'" in M rienna. 

Well, after \:hat couldn • t the Sta·i;e have asked: I 
•·Let us try him?" 

A Well, ·the}' a~ked ::.o serve the warxant on him, 

Mr. Justice 

Q No, ~o; I roeun the petition for writ of habeus 

corpus; they could hive a.sked it right t..1-ien and t here. 

A 

Q 

Well, now you're talking about within 10 days. 

Well, I think speedy means speedy. 

Well, how about one day. I'm not bei nq funny, 

but i:eally we've got a Sc.a-cute that says three times in court. 

Presumably, unless you strike it: down ag beinq oppressi•.re, if 

we meet that we are in business. 

Q Well, :ny point is: the whole question is that 

you rely on the fact that he ias taken out of the State by the 

Federal authori-c:ies. And I'm asking you: couldn't the State 

have said to the FedP:-:al authori t:i.es, "I.eave him 1'ere so ":e can 

try hin on our charge." 
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A I under tand, ,1 , but they didn t becaui:,H of 

the Feaeral author· t::. ~s o•lldn' · e'lf,''"l accept the war,:ant for 

servic. nn the man. 

Q Well, hey dor 't ha,;e to a-~cept the; warrc..nt. 

understand that the ~ocal procc <Jure wh~.ch is -::~t out in Smith 

and Hooey of how you ~~ta Feder~l ~risonnr, and it's undis-

puted ~hat. whenever· ~ked for the Federul om:horities hav<.:! 

turned tne prisoner over. 

A Well, I'm si:ucl. oiith the f.ict that that wasn't 

. . .. 

done, no !!li'!tter what our position. It clearly becomes: Is w1lat 

we did a constitutional deprivation of n ~ight that you ~ccoz-

niz~d in Klopfer, or isn't it? 

Q Well, as I understand it you are allowed I 

hate to use the word ·'allowed," but the Feder.a::. people took it 

·out of the state and ;;hat threw him under .01 instead -- .02 

instead of .Ol? 

A That's :ciqht. WEll, no i.t would have been .02 

all the same if he we.re a pr1...;oner not in Federal custc~y. I·;; 

simply has to do with one at liberty and one in custody, you 

see. And I point th~t up because ~c have a case called Loy 

versus Grayson. It's po~,sibly eight or nine years old, mayb~ a 

little older, in which a man out on bond complained becau~e he 

hadn't been tried in 25 terms o<: court and they said, "Look, 

man, if you didn't mcke> D cc1oplaint about it and you were out 

enjoying your liberty in the custocy of your bondsman, you can't 
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be heard to complain abo~t it. I don•~ rely on that, but you 

know --

Q Of course, here he did ask three different 

timas. 

A Yes, but: he did it badly in not in accord with 

law. Now, I've got nothing left. but that. Now, either he's 

required to fo1lo,~ that or he is not. I contend ·.:hat just bc-

c;;.use .1e 's in a Federal p,:,1~.tantiary, ooesn' t excuse him from 

co, .. plying \1ith it., especial1y since he waited 30 fi\Onths to 

bring a corr.plaint --

Q liha~ :.s it he didn't do? He didn't come there 

in person? 

A No, s.1.r; no, sir. !>lS. 02 says! "t'li thin 30 

days of the first dav of each term of the court in which you 

are to be tried you 'ilc a demund ror a speedy t~ial, serving 

acopy on the prose cu •:ion for each of three successive tenns and 

if they don't do it, yoJ. ~.re hol'\e free. " 

Now, he didn't do th;:t. Now, .:hat's not an opp res·· 

si\'e requirement, no: of hiri or anybody else. Nobody said you, 
I 

h ... ve to do it in beautiful words, tn thi.s or that setting; just• 

do it. 

Q WEll, all that is to let this COl'.rt know that 

you were pushing it. 

A 

Q 

No; the prosecution, not the court. 

Oh, the prosecution. 
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A Yes, sir. The court doesn't decide when h~'& 

be tried, the prosccJtion doos. The State Attorney has toe 

optior, of doing it or not and the our e can' t force him to do 

it, at least in Florida. Now, that may sound peculiar, but in 

the last ani:lysis he functions pretty much as a grand jury 

does. Suppose they 3o,'t: want to indi.ct. No court can raakc, 

them indict. And that's wh1 w, have the peculiar situation 

That's why we have t, iave the individual advise the State 

Attorney or the Soli:itor, :1.s the case r~ay be, "Look, I'm 

pressing for a trial and I Hant it now or I want out from under 

it." That puts him :m notice. 

But that dldn't happen here. 

0 Well, 1e has three no t.icas • 

A Well, spanning sor.ie seven yc.::irs, sir. 

Q What? 

A Spar.n tng a total of seven year;;. 

Q Yes, :;panning over that total he has got three 

of them; hasn't he? Who did those notices go to? 

Taylor. 

A 

Q 

They went to the Circuit Court, to the judr,e. 

Circuit Cc,urt to the judge? 

A That'3 correct. In all three instances, Judqc 

' I 
I 

Q I By wr l t of habeus corpus ? 

A Yes, sir; and I'll tell you why that's not the 
t 

proper v-eh.icle. 
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Q Wh~th!r it's a proper one or not, that's about 

as good as a layr,1an .ioul<l know; isn't it? 

A Well, her<c we go. I 
tie are saying that whether i t1 

was proper or not or whethe':' it was tiMely or not, why are \le 

bothering with ti·:at 3ince we are talkinq about eight years. 

Q Well, it was siqnal to the court that he 

wanted a trial, each time they heard from him; was it not? 

A 

Q 

Oh, 

And 

Y?S. ') 

y,u s~y the prosecutor has the ccntrol. You 

say that ~here isn't an inherent power and corresponding duty 
\ 

on the court to see :hat cases are tried promptly, no matter 

what the prosecutor 'l~s? 

A Nell, I know of no way in which a charge can be 

filed by the court, 1r. Chief Justice. 

Q The CJurt has quite a bit of power over the 

prosecutor; doesn't 1e? Just by calling him and saying, "Put 

this case down next :erm or I'll dismiss it." 

A 

Q 

A 

They :an lean on him; of course they can. 

And t 1ey do. 

On oc,:asion I am sure they have. At least r 

know that I've been lone and properly so most of the time, but 

I don't back off and out of that. The point is here is the man 

complaining and he s 1ys, "Look, I ouqht to have a speedy t1:ial. 1 

The first :hing he didn't. do was to move for it when 

he could have. !-le h,1d 30 months within which he would have --

29 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

to 

t1 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

24 

25 

Q But :t• did do it th,ce til"l(;!S, didn't he? 

A Well, suppose, r•r. Justic,c Black, he had iiaitcd 

25 years to do it th ·ee t1111es? 

Q '3ut hn's got to do it at a certain particular 

date and certai.n hou · of the day and certain day of the rr.onth? 

A No; just within ~O c.ays ot" the first term --

first day of the ten1. 

Q Just 11ithin :to days and 1ehen he can't do it 

again? Can he? 

sworn out? 

A 

Q 

A 

Yes, lie, can. 

Would you minu t llinq ine •~hen the warrant was 

July .. , 1960 -- June 28th1 I'rn sorry. And it 

was served to him ··-

Q 

A 

What ·1appcned to it then? 

It wan lodged with the U. s. Marshal's office 

in Marianna. 

Q U. S. ,•larshal 's office? 

A That' l right. 

Q And nnver was filed in the state court office? 

was it? 

A No, becauae the::e •~;;s no return made on it; it 

hadn't been served. 

Q Are y,,u arguing that as a defense that it was not 

filed in a state cou·t? 
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A 

Q 

l\ 

Q 

Well, I'll ,rquc ,"!nything I think I ca11 use. 

I uncexstand it, but <1re urguing it? 

No. I'll tell you this very 

ffnat :i.~ your defensa? 

M•t d£fense is, very simply that he waived his 

right to complain abo~t it because he didn't meet the require-

ments of 915.02. 

Q By fi:Cing a cer1;ain notice under 915.02. 

A 

Q 

A 

Three times running; yes. 

Three tines running? 

That's what the statute says, sir. 

Q Well, he did it three times running. 

over sever2l years. 

They ran 

A 

Q 

'62 and '63. 

They ran over quited few years and I miqht add-• 

Wc~ldn't he get discouraged if he got nowhere in 

A It's possible that he didn't want to qo to trial' 

until aomebody else died. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

I asked, though, do you suppose? 

I don't know. 

He might have been discouraged. 

I don't think so, sir. 

Q I 91-iess the essence of your position, as I underl 

stand it is that up until Klopfer there 1-:as no Federal compul-

sion, no Federal right. 
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A That io corrDct, sir. 

Q That all h . :1nd up to Klopfer h., the state 

right and he- didn't como1y ,-1itr. th~ terrni:. of tto state right. 

A Exactly. 

Q And then f.ollow1.nq Klopfer your r.onrt moved into1 

action pronto; is that :U:? 

A Virtually im;r.c.diately . They ackno,1ledge what 

you said in Klopfer as their predicate and said, "All right, 

11r. Uop ins, either make it or miss." He made it. 

Q t-lhat did ttlopfer hold? 

A 'iiell, it was literally an auto111atic reversal. 

You didn't discuss prejudice. ·:cu said I would have to 

assume you were talking about the delay in time "It .becomes 

a comn1and under the Sixth kr.ena. ~s,nt." lfuat you did was extend , 

the protection 

Q 

wasn't it? 

A 

Q 

The Sixth Amendment was in effect all that t:i.me 

I beg your pardon? 

The Sixth Jimendroent was in effect from th,!. ~ime 

the warrant was swor1 until he finally filed this last notice, 

wasn't it? 

A well, certainly the sixth Amen&lent was there, 

but I don• t understa 1d what you mean by "in effect," sir. 

0 Well, it was on the books, wasn't it? 

A Of coirse . 
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Q Your ~oint is that althouqh it was on the books: 

it was on th,:, boolcs ·gainr,t th_, Fcdt',al Govecn~ent: not ag;tinst1 

the State. 

A ·rhat is a fact, and r think that's what I sa,.d 

in my brief, that Klopfer make~ no difference e:ccept as to 

those states which had no state provision regarding a speedy 

trial. That gave a complaining individual a right to come to 

you ala the Federal violation as you enunciated it in Klopfer. 

Until you did, all that can be said is the Sixth sat there 

until you decided it was going to be applied to the states, 

through the 14th. 

Now, I don't mean to be evasive, but that's what I 

understand you did in Klopfer. 

Now, if he didn't meet Florida's requirements at a 

time when he could have ano secured his reJ.ease, and didn't 

have the option of doing it under Klopfer, because all of his 

moves had been made by then, and I submit that our court was 

not in error and his demand for a speedy trial was made at a 

time when he had no assurimoo without compliance with the state 

law or guarantee under the Federal that he was going to get it 

simply by the pASsage of tine. 

Q one other point: the judge never mentioned the 

fact that this piece of paper didn't coMply with the law, did 

he? 

A Once again I say like the last time I was here 
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in November: "It doe n't ma.'< 'Uly dif'fer"'nce that he did or 

didn't, Mr • ..iusticc. "Iarshall. The outcome was correct, what-

ever his rea3oning. And I don't likE: to say 'i::hat on one side 

and tc1lk ebout him on the otrer., but T h,ve to talce the order 

as I can support, without ragard to what he said. Conceivably 

he could have said somathinq which simplv didn't make any 
I legal sense and it might, ·nevertheless, have been a good order., 

So, very sir.,ply I say: we talk about ~ud Strickland. 

He talks .ibout prejudice. Dove have to assume that if Bud 

Strickland was there to l:cstify that he 1;ouldn' t be complain-

ing about ~e loss of memory? I don't think so. :r thinkhe 

waited and he waited conveniently. 

Ncw,his sister died --

Q But, ne sent these notices. He didn't wait that 

long, did he? 

jailed. 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

until his third one? 

Well, when was this? 

The first one was in • 62, JO months after he was 

That's two years. 

A About 29 months, 30 months. So he wasn't so 

much interested in a speedy trial then. 

Q Well, he asked for one. 

A Yes, but 12 111onths after he would l1ave been out 

from under it, yvu see. Three tenns of Circuit Court run --
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Q Well that is if he, nad known the state law. 

He probably didn't J.now it. 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

j; bee your pai:don? 

He probably didn't knm, the state law. 

lie st .:'3 di.d know it. 

11:> d d. 

A He f~lea with1n 28 days of the first; dead on 

the button on the second and almost dead on the button on the 

third. 

Q 

A 

(l 

Did t e cite the sta':e law? 

No, r-ir. 

Well, '1ow do you know he kne11 it? 

A WelJ., look, now, I'm assuming -- I take the 

position that he dio · by v'.rtue of the fact of the time of his 

filing, but I'll go better than that. Suppose he didn't know 

i.t, does he enjoy a better sta·:us because he doesn't? 

Q 

A 

Well, I just wanted to get how he knew it. 

Well, he certainly knew enough to make a de:nand 

for a trial, in whatever fashion he did it. 

Q But h:;, used ti1e words of the constitution; 

didn't he? 

A Yes, but I don'': think that's quita enouq 

until what you said in !Uopfer. t•'e can always 

Q That• s you.- ?OS.- tion, that this right di.dn • t 

really attach or put aay dut::.es on the State of Florida ,.mtil 
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the Court spoke in Klopfer, 

A Tha - 's correct, at t.he Federal level. Now, in 

order for him to have a righ~ to cor~plain about a Federally-

assured right to a sp,Jedy trial, I contend Klopfer first put i 

into effect. 

If we go back to i,'lorida' s til'le, then he didn' t compl , 

comply with 915.02 and the court so stated in Dickey and just 

as soon as they said, "Now is the til'le, Mr. Hopkins, for you 

to move,"he did move, and he got. hirn back. 

he was tried. 

And 55 days later 

But about the prohibition, I can't stress that i:o.; 

strongly. If it was a fact that thil3 man was not going to be 

stuck with flagging memo~ies or anythinq like that, why tlidn't 

he bring prohibition, which is available to him. Ile says the 

result would be automatic; what was the point in bringing it? 

Well, if it is automatic then that's exactly what he should 

have done. 

There is no point in him sittinq in Raiford right now 

under a criminal conviction when he knew what the outcome would 

be and could come to you and say, "Well, now, look here. They 

denied me my prohibition and on the face of it I was entitled 

to a speedy trial because I inade these demands. He took a 

chance and he lost and he doesn't like it. That, I understand, 

but it doesn't qualify him for relief under t'1e status of the 

cases in existence at the til'le. 
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Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Where is he incarcerated now? 

Raiford, Florida; the state penitentiary. 

The Federal sentence is terminated and --

I don't know that it's terminated. 

Your friend doesn't seem to agree with you. 

Perhaps we can clear that uo later with him. 

A It's possible that they sent him back to the 

Federal penitentiary; I don't know. 

Q 

A 

Q 

And what was the sentence in Florida? 

I think he got 20 years. 

Do you think that if Klopfer had never come on 

the books, that Florida could have continued along keeping this 

fellow in jail without subject5;ng -- giving rise to any con-

stitutional claim in his --

A No, sir, consldering the rr~jesty of their order 

in Dickey, and I was on the short end of that one, I can 

guarantee you that it wouldn't have been without regard to 

Klopfer. 

Q 

A 

Q 

But t:iat 'las after Klopfer. 

Oh, yes. 

Well, all I'm suggesting is that your arqument 

leaves out one very iMportant factor, and that is the due 

process right that this man had to a speedy trial or some kind 

of a trial in the state courts, independently of Klopfer. 

A Yes, he did. All I say is we must measure it on 
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a pan with all of what he did and all about which he co!'l-

plained. If you tclce it: .i.sola,:.:?d, of course, he qualifies. 

Who wouldn't like to COl1',e to Y">U and say, "Eight years, come 

on 11
--

MR. CIIIEr' JUSTICE BURGER: I think \./~ have your 

point on that, We ho1.ve your point all clea:~. 

A All right, I conterd that the action of the D:l.stric 

Court below should be affi:r.med, or at least that this case 

should not be reversed. 

MR. CHIEF JUSTICE BURGE~{• ~1r. Buchanan, will you 

clear up the matter of where is the clefendruit now? 

A Yes, sir. Pei:ition~r is presently incarcerated 

at Leavenworth. His sentence expires in 1971. He was given a 

ten-year sentence to run consecutively to any presently 

existing centence, so he will not be bock in the State of 

c'lorida until 1971, 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

And then he will begin to serve --

The Florida sentence. 

-- nine more years minimum? 

For good time, but his sentence is ten. The 

order read: "Consecutively to cny existing sentence." 

I would liko to cl~ar up one point here: Counsel has 

made the statement that he did not comply with 'che statutes. 

The way I read the order of the trial judge r-,11 December l, 1962 

even assuming that the Petitioner had compU.ed with 915.02, 
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judge would not have returned him to Florida: that it wusn't 

until Dickey versub the Circuit C'o11rt, which came out in 

June 14, 1967, did F !.ori.;l:;, sv.y ... h,tt created a third statute, 

i.1 a sense, and that statute was t'1at people who were in-

carcerated outside the territorial limits of Florida could be 

lrought back in for trial. 

Q Do you thin~ before that, this judge, even if 

he had complied with the l'lorida statutory provisions, I1ould 

have said, "Well, the·y·don't apply to you because you are in 

prison outside the state." 

A Yes, sir; that is my position. 

Counsel has made reference that he had counsel duringl 

this period '·:hile !1e was at Leaven,1orth. He did not have 1 

counsel. 

And for those reasons we --
. 

0 Are you going to say anything about this last 

case in point 

A Your Honor, yes at Court, this is a fundamental 

right. This Court has said that the Sixth Amendment right is 

as fundamental as the right to Counsel. I think i t was always 

there, Your Honor. 

0 So, by that you mean it is retroactive? 

A Yes, sir. 

0 Klopfer is retroactive. 

A Yes, sir. 
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Q Well, is it. Klopfer that's retroactive, or the 

constitution itself in the sense that: if Klopfer had not been 

decided, he had this right. 

A He had 'chis right; yes. 

Q I dor.'t know whether this is a semantic dif-

ference, but in this Court it's important matt.er. 

A Yes, cir; I understand. 

I have nothing further. 

MR. CHIEP JUSTICE BURGER: Thank you, Mr. Buchanan. 

Case is submitted. 

(Whereupon, at 2:20 o'cl;)ck 9.m. the argument in the 

above-entitled matter was concluded) 
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